

Town of Double Oak Town Council –Public Meeting

Double Oak Town Hall 320 Waketon Road, Double Oak TX 75077 Monday, April 18, 2022 7:00 p.m.

Out of respect for all those in attendance, please refrain from talking to other members of the audience during the meeting. Please do not engage in disruptive behavior. For public input during Citizen Comment or public hearings, all speakers will be limited to three minutes each. The Council does not accept public comment by mail or e-mail; speakers must be present, or a written statement must be read into the council's record by a speaker who is present at the meeting, subject to the three-minute limit.

I. Opening: Call to Order

Roll Call Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance – American Flag Pledge of Allegiance – Texas Flag

"Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible."

II. Citizen Comments

- III. Consent Agenda All consent agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the Town Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda. Information concerning consent agenda items is available for public review.
 - 1. Consideration, and action on minutes of April 4, 2022. *
 - 2. Consideration on Joint Election Agreement and Contract for May 7, 2022, General Election services with Denton County.*
- IV. Mayor, Council Members and Staff reports:
 - 3. Mayor and Council
 - 4. Public Works Code Enforcement Animal Control
 - 5. Administration
 - 6. Public Safety
 - 7. Road and Drainage Committee
- V. New business agenda (consideration and action):
 - 8. Discussion, consideration, and action on a resolution nominating one member to the Board of Managers of the DENCO Area 9-1-1 District.*

Presentation: Town Secretary Eileen Kennedy

Double Oak Town Council Regular Meeting April 18, 2022 Page 2

> 9. Discussion on homestead exemption for elderly or disabled persons and homestead tax freeze for elderly or disabled persons.

Presentation:

Town Treasurer Garrett

Discussion, consideration, and action on the Roads and Drainage recommendation for 10. repairs to Brittain Lane that the \$2,700 quote is the best option.

Presentation:

Mayor Beougher

- 11. Council – staff announcements and comments:
 - May 7, 2022, Municipal Election Day The following candidates have filed for a place on the ballot:

COUNCIL MEMBER (3 SEATS)

Billie Garrett Tim Bologna Patrick Johnson Jean Hillyer Connie Schoenrade

Town Hall will be an early voting site for the May 7, 2022, Municipal Election.

April 25 - 30	Monday - Saturday 8:00 a.m 5:00 p.m.
May 1	Sunday 11:00 a.m. − 5:00 p.m.
May 2 - 3	Monday - Tuesday 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m.

23. Adjournment

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, this meeting may be convened into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the Town Attorney, or on any other item covered under the code, on any agenda item listed herein.

The Town of Double Oak reserves the right to reconvene, recess or realign the Regular Session or called Executive Session or order of business at any time prior to adjournment.

I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted by Friday, April 15, 2022, by 4:00 p.m. on:

Double Oak Town Council Regular Meeting April 18, 2022 Page 3

- 1) Bulletin board located to the right of the front door at Town Hall, 320 Waketon Road, Double Oak, Texas
- 2) On the Town's website (https://doubleoak.texas.gov)

Eileen Kennedy

Town Secretary

<u>PUBLIC PARTICIPATION</u> If you wish to address the Council, please sign the "CITIZENS WHO WISH TO SPEAK TO THE TOWN COUNCIL" sheet before the meeting begins. Pursuant to Section 551.007 of the Texas Government Code, citizens wishing to address the Council for items listed as public hearings will be recognized when the public hearing is opened. For citizens wishing to speak on a non-public hearing item, they may either address the Council during the Citizen Comments portion of the meeting or when the Town Council considers the item.

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the Town Secretary's office at 972.539.9464, fax 972.539.9613 or email to eileen.kennedy@doubleoak.texas.gov for additional information.

^{*} Backup attached

UNAPPROVED-NOT FOR PUBLICATION

STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF DENTON TOWN OF DOUBLE OAK

The Double Oak Town Council met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. April 4, 2022, at the Double Oak Town Hall, located at 320 Waketon Road with the following members present to-wit:

Von Beougher Mayor

Billie Garrett Mayor Pro-Tem

Anita Nelson Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem

Scott Whisenhunt Council Member
Joe Dent Council Member
Casey Parsons Council Member

Also in attendance were Town Secretary Eileen Kennedy, Building Permits/Public Services Coordinator Randall Anglin, and Police Chief Ruben Rivas.

Mayor Beougher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Council Member Dent gave the invocation and Council Member Parsons lead the pledge of allegiance to the American and Texas flags.

II. Citizen Comments

Karen Smith, 168 Meadow Knoll, commented on a street failure near 160 Meadow Knoll and asked if someone would look at it.

Chris Engel, 330 Lake Trail Ct., voiced again his concerns about an unnecessary stop sign at Lake Trail St. and Lake Trail Dr. Suggested a yield sign.

Mayor Beougher brought agenda item 7 forward.

7. Discussion, consideration, and action on contracting with Cross Timbers Water Supply to paint the Double Oak logo on both sides of the water tower located on FM407 and Simmons Road at approximately \$13,500.

Former Mayor Mike Donnelly, 302 East Carruth, addressed the council on the Cross Timbers Water Supply water tower on FM407 and Simmons Road and gave his full support to put the Double Oak logo on both sides of the water tower.

Council Member Parsons commented she is in favor of the logo on both sides of the water tower and appreciated Mayor Donnelly for bringing the item back on the agenda. Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Nelson is also in favor of the logo and commented that the water tower is a landmark. Council Member Dent said the logo is great advertisement.

Double Oak Town Council Minutes April 4, 2022 Page 2

Motion Nelson, second Parsons to contracting with Cross Timbers Water Supply to paint the Double Oak logo on both sides of the water tower located on FM407 and Simmons Road at approximately \$13,500.

AYE: Garrett, Dent, Nelson, Parsons, Whisenhunt

NAY: None ABSTAIN: None

Motion Carried

Mayor Beougher went back to the agenda order.

- III. Consent Agenda All consent agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the Town Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda. Information concerning consent agenda items is available for public review.
 - 1. Consideration, and action on minutes of March 21, 2022.

Motion Dent, second Garrett to approve the minutes of March 21, 2022, as corrected.

AYE: Parsons, Garrett, Dent

NAY: None

ABSTAIN: Whisenhunt, Nelson

Motion Carried

- IV. Mayor, Council Members and Staff reports:
 - 2. Mayor and Council Mayor Beougher introduced Randall Anglin as the town's new Public Services Coordinator. Council Member Parsons thanked the police department for patrolling Waketon Road for wrong way drivers.
 - 3. Public Works Code Enforcement Animal Control None
 - 4. Administration Town Secretary Eileen Kennedy reported that she has been in contact with Republic Services and Crossroads Bible Church to schedule the Hazardous Household Waste event. More to come.
 - 5. Public Safety– DOPD-Chief Rivas reported that a new officer will coming on board but still one officer short; DOVFD- None

Double Oak Town Council Minutes April 4, 2022 Page 3

- 6. Road and Drainage Committee–Gary Garrett, 120 Trailing Oaks Drive and member of the Roads and Drainage committee, reported the committee met two weeks ago to site roads for recommendation to the council. Dr. Gary Goodman, Chair of the Roads and Drainage Committee, is working on a list and should have it ready soon. Mr. Garrett also commented the committee has lost several members and would like to see representation from all areas of town. Mayor Beougher reported that Double Oaks Drive has not been completed.
- V. New business agenda (consideration and action):
 - 8. Discussion, consideration, and action on a request from Sigma Sign Company to allow an exception under the Sign Regulations, Section 3.1302(6)(C)(vi)(2) Maximum Size to allow a larger height of the sign and larger maximum square footage of the sign then allowed in the sign ordinance.

Council Member Whisenhunt said the sign ordinance needs to be looked at and updated.

Motion Nelson, second Garrett to allow a larger height of the sign and larger maximum square footage of the sign than allowed in the sign ordinance.

AYE: Dent, Whisenhunt, Nelson, Garrett, Parsons

NAY: None ABSTAIN: None

Motion Carried

9. Discussion on homestead exemption for elderly or disabled persons and homestead tax freeze for elderly or disabled persons

Town Treasurer Garrett reported she has been in conversation with the Denton County Tax office and found the Denton Central Appraisal District's numbers reported were incorrect. Denton County Tax showed 323 residents over 65 and, if a tax freeze is adopted, there would be an approximate loss of revenue to the town of \$13,500

10. Discussion, consideration, and action on a revised quote from All-Out Concrete for repairs to Brittain Lane per town's engineer's recommendations.

Gregg and Connie Schoenrade, 203 Colonial Court, addressed the council with multiple reasons for repairing Brittain Lane, DOVFD access, school busses, alternative egress from the neighborhood.

Patrick Johnson, 164 Park, commented that the quote has more exclusions than inclusions and what the future of the road is. More consideration is needed to do it right.

Double Oak Town Council Minutes April 4, 2022 Page 4

Gary Don Brittain, 35 Kings Road, said the road is particularly important to his family and wants to see it repaired properly.

Mindy Short, 204 Colonial Court, mentioned she had spoken to our former engineer, Jeff Crannell and was told the brick road was not made for traffic.

Council took no action.

- 11. Council staff announcements and comments:
 - Max Miller and Bob Weir of the *Cross Timbers Gazette* will be moderators for the Candidate Forum on April 12, 2022 and will be aired on Facebook Live.
 - May 7, 2022, Municipal Election Day
 The following candidates have filed for a place on the ballot:

COUNCIL MEMBER (3 SEATS)

Billie Garrett Tim Bologna Patrick Johnson Jean Hillyer Connie Schoenrade

• Town Hall will be an early voting site for the May 7, 2022, Municipal Election.

April 25 - 30	Monday - Saturday 8:00 a.m 5:00 p.m.
May 1	Sunday 11:00 a.m. − 5:00 p.m.
May 2 - 3	Monday - Tuesday 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m.
•	J J

12. Adjournment

With no further business to come before the Council, motion Whisenhunt, second Dent, the meeting was adjourned at 8:19 p.m.

Eileen Kennedy, Town Secretary	Von Beougher, Mayor

THE STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF DENTON

JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT FOR ELECTION SERVICES

This CONTRACT for election services is made by and between the Denton County Elections Administrator and the following political subdivisions, herein referred to as "participating authority or participating authorities" located entirely or partially inside the boundaries of Denton County:

Participating Authorities:

ARGYLE AUBREY ISD BELMONT FWSD #1 CARROLLTON

CELINA
COPPER CANYON
CROSS ROADS
DCFWSD 6
DENTON
DENTON ISD
ERA ISD
FORT WORTH
FRISCO WEST WC

FRISCO WEST WCID JUSTIN

KRUM ISD
LAKE DALLAS ISD
LEWISVILLE ISD
LITTLE ELM ISD
NORTHLAKE
OAK POINT
PONDER
PROSPER
ROANOKE
SANGER ISD

SANGER ISD TROPHY CLUB WESTLAKE ARGYLE ISD BARTONVILLE BELMONT FWSD #2

CARROLLTON-FARMERS BRANCH ISD

CELINA ISD
CORINTH
DCFWSD 10
DCFWSD 7
DENTON COUNTY
DOUBLE OAK
FLOWER MOUND
FRISCO ISD

HIGHLAND VILLAGE

KRUM

LAKE CITIES MUA

LEWISVILLE LITTLE ELM NEW FAIRVIEW NORTHWEST ISD PILOT POINT PONDER ISD PROSPER ISD SANGER

SHADY SHORES
TROPHY CLUB MUD#1

This contract is made pursuant to Texas Election Code Sections 31.092 and 271.002 and Texas Education Code Section 11.0581 for a joint May 7, 2022 election to be administered by Frank Phillips, Denton County Elections Administrator, hereinafter referred to as "Elections Administrator."

RECITALS

Each participating authority listed above plans to hold a General or Special Election on May 7, 2022. Denton County plans to hold county-wide voting for this General Election.

The County owns the Hart InterCivic Verity Voting System, which has been duly approved by the

Secretary of State pursuant to Texas Election Code Chapter 122 as amended, and is compliant with the accessibility requirements for persons with disabilities set forth by Texas Election Code Section 61.012. The contracting political subdivisions (participating authorities) desire to use the County's voting system and to compensate the County for such use and to share in certain other expenses connected with joint elections, in accordance with the applicable provisions of Chapters 31 and 271 of the Texas Election Code, as amended.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements, and benefits to all parties, IT IS AGREED as follows:

I. ADMINISTRATION

The participating authorities agree to hold a "Joint Election" with Denton County and each other in accordance with Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code and this agreement. The Elections Administrator shall coordinate, supervise, and handle all aspects of administering the Joint Election as provided in this agreement. Each participating authority agrees to pay the Elections Administrator for equipment, supplies, services, and administrative costs as provided in this agreement. The Elections Administrator shall serve as the administrator for the Joint Election; however, each participating authority shall remain responsible for the decisions and actions of its officers necessary for the lawful conduct of its election. The Elections Administrator shall provide advisory services in connection with decisions to be made and actions to be taken by the officers of each participating authority as necessary.

It is understood that other political subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the County's Verity voting system and polling places, and it is agreed that the Elections Administrator may enter into other contracts for election services for those purposes, on terms and conditions generally similar to those set forth in this contract. In such cases, costs shall be pro-rated among the participants according to Section XI of this contract.

II. LEGAL DOCUMENTS

Each participating authority shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption, and publication of all required election orders, resolutions, notices, and any other pertinent documents required by the Texas Election Code and/or the participating authority's governing body, charter, or ordinances, except that the Elections Administrator shall be responsible for the preparation and publication of all voting equipment testing notices that are required by the Texas Election Code. Election orders should include language that would not necessitate amending the order if any of the Early Voting and/or Election Day polling places change.

Preparation of the necessary materials for notices and the official ballot shall be the responsibility of each participating authority, including translation to languages other than English. Each participating authority shall provide a copy of their respective election orders and notices to the Elections Administrator.

III. VOTING LOCATIONS

The Elections Administrator shall select and arrange for the use of and payment for all Early Voting and Election Day voting locations. Voting locations will be, whenever possible, the usual voting location for each election precinct in elections conducted by each participating authority, and shall be compliant with the accessibility requirements established by Election Code Section 43.034 and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The proposed voting locations are listed in Exhibit A of this agreement. In the event a voting location is not available or appropriate, the Elections Administrator will arrange for use of an alternate location. The Elections Administrator shall notify the participating authorities of any changes from the locations listed in Exhibit A.

IV. ELECTION JUDGES, CLERKS, AND OTHER ELECTION PERSONNEL

Denton County shall be responsible for the appointment of the presiding judge and alternate judge for each polling location. The Elections Administrator shall make emergency appointments of election officials if necessary.

Upon request by the Elections Administrator, each participating authority agrees to assist in recruiting bilingual polling place officials (fluent in both English and Spanish). In compliance with the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, each polling place containing more than 5% Hispanic population as determined by the 2020 Census shall have one or more election officials who are fluent in both the English and Spanish languages. If a presiding judge is not bilingual, and is unable to appoint a bilingual clerk, the Elections Administrator may recommend a bilingual worker for the polling place. If the Elections Administrator is unable to recommend or recruit a bilingual worker, the participating authority or authorities served by that polling place shall be responsible for recruiting a bilingual worker for translation services at that polling place.

The Elections Administrator shall notify all election judges of the eligibility requirements of Subchapter C of Chapter 32 of the Texas Election Code, and will take the necessary steps to insure that all election judges appointed for the Joint Election are eligible to serve.

The Elections Administrator shall arrange for the training and compensation of all election judges and clerks. The Election judges and clerks who attend in-person voting equipment training and/or procedures training, shall be compensated at the rate of \$13 an hour. Election judges and clerks that elect to complete online training shall be compensated as a rate of a flat \$40. In the event that as Election judge or clerk completes both in-person and online training, they shall be compensated for the training resulting in the highest pay and will not be compensated for both trainings.

The Elections Administrator shall arrange for the date, time, and place for presiding election judges to pick up their election supplies. Each presiding election judge will be sent a letter from the Elections Administrator notifying them of their appointment, the dates/times and locations of training and distribution of election supplies, and the number of election clerks that the presiding judge may appoint.

Each election judge and clerk will receive compensation at the hourly rate established by Denton County pursuant to Texas Election Code Section 32.091 and overtime after 40 hours worked per week, if applicable. The election judge, or their designee, will receive an additional sum of \$25.00 for picking up the election supplies and equipment prior to Election Day and for returning the supplies and equipment to the central counting station after the polls close. Likewise, the Lead Clerk in Early Voting, or their designee, will receive an additional sum of \$25.00 for picking up the election supplies prior to the first day of Early Voting and for returning the supplies and equipment to the Elections Department after Early Voting has ended.

The compensation rates established by Denton County are:

Early Voting – Presiding Judge (\$15/hour), Alternate Judge (\$14/hour), Clerk (\$13/hour)

Election Day - Presiding Judge (\$15/hour), Alternate Judge (\$14/hour), Clerk (\$13/hour)

The Elections Administrator may employ other personnel necessary for the proper administration of the election, as well as, pre and post-election administration. In such cases, costs shall be pro-rated among participants of this contract. Personnel working in support of full-time staff will be expensed on a pro-rated basis and include a time period of one week prior to the election, during the election, and one week post-election. Personnel working in support of the Early Voting Ballot Board and/or central counting station on election night will be compensated at the hourly rate set by Denton County in accordance with Election Code Sections 87.005, 127.004, and 127.006.

If elections staff is required outside of the hours of the office's normal scope of business, the entity(ies) responsible for the hours will be billed for those hours. The Elections Administrator will determine when those hours are necessary, the number of staff and whom are necessary, along with to whom the hours are to be billed. Cost for these hours will be billed at a rate of 1.5 times the staff's hourly rate (See Sections XV #10). The Election Administrator has the right to waive these costs as they see fit.

V. PREPARATION OF SUPPLIES AND VOTING EQUIPMENT

The Elections Administrator shall arrange for delivery of all election supplies and voting equipment including, but not limited to, the County's Verity voting system and equipment, official ballot paper, sample ballots, voter registration lists, and all forms, signs, maps and other materials used by the election judges at the voting locations. The Elections Administrator shall ensure availability of tables and chairs at each polling place and shall procure rented tables and chairs for those polling places that do not have tables and/or chairs. Any additional required materials (required by the Texas Election Code) must be provided by the participating authority, and delivered to the Elections Office thirty-three (33) calendar days (April 4, 2022) prior to Election Day. If this deadline is not met, the material must be delivered by the participating authority, to all Early Voting and Election Day locations affected, prior to voting commencing. The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for conducting all required testing of the voting equipment, as required by Chapters 127 and 129 of the

Texas Election Code.

At each polling location, joint participants shall share voting equipment and supplies to the extent possible. The participating authorities shall share a mutual ballot in those precincts where jurisdictions overlap. Multiple ballot styles shall be available in those shared polling places where jurisdictions do not overlap. The Elections Administrator shall provide the necessary voter registration information, maps, instructions, and other information needed to enable the election judges in the voting locations that have more than one ballot style to conduct a proper election.

Each participating authority shall furnish the Elections Administrator a list of candidates and/or propositions showing the order and the exact manner in which the candidate names and/or proposition(s) are to appear on the official ballot (including titles and text in each language in which the authority's ballot is to be printed). Said list must be provided to the Elections Office within three (3) business days following the last day to file for a place on the ballot or after the election is ordered, whichever is later. The list must be in a Word document, the information must be in an sentence case format, be in Arial 12 point font, and must contain candidate contact information for the purposes of verifying the pronunciation of each candidate's name. Each participating authority shall be responsible for proofreading and approving the ballot insofar as it pertains to that authority's candidates and/or propositions. Each participating authority shall be responsible for proofing and approving the audio recording of the ballot insofar as it pertains to that authority's candidates and/or propositions. The approval must be finalized with the Elections Office within five (5) calendar days of the receipt of the proofs, or the provided proofs shall be considered approved.

The joint election ballots shall list the County's election first. The joint election ballots that contain ballot content for more than one joint participant because of overlapping territory shall be arranged with the appropriate school district ballot content appearing on the ballot following the County's election, followed by the appropriate city ballot content, and followed by the appropriate water district or special district ballot content.

Early Voting by personal appearance and on Election Day shall be conducted exclusively on Denton County's Verity voting system including provisional ballots.

The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for the preparation, testing, and delivery of the voting equipment for the election as required by the Election Code.

The Elections Administrator shall conduct criminal background checks on the relevant employees upon hiring as required by Election Code 129.051(g).

VI. EARLY VOTING

The participating authorities agree to conduct joint early voting and to appoint the Election Administrator as the Early Voting Clerk in accordance with Sections 31.097 and 271.006 of the Texas Election Code. Each participating authority agrees to appoint the Elections Administrator's

permanent county employees as deputy early voting clerks. The participating authorities further agree that the Elections Administrator may appoint other deputy early voting clerks to assist in the conduct of early voting as necessary, and that these additional deputy early voting clerks shall be compensated at an hourly rate set by Denton County pursuant to Section 83.052 of the Texas Election Code. Deputy early voting clerks who are permanent employees of the Denton County Elections Administrator or any participating authorities shall serve in that capacity without additional compensation.

Exhibit A of this document includes locations, dates, and times that voting will be held for Early Voting by personal appearance. Any qualified voter of the Joint Election may vote early by personal appearance at any one of the joint early voting locations. All requests for temporary branch polling places will be considered, and determined based on the availability of facility and if it is within the Election Code parameters. All costs for temporary locations including coverage by Election Administration staff will be borne by the requesting authority. The Elections Administrator will determine when those hours are necessary, the number of staff and whom are necessary, along with to whom the hours are to be billed. Cost for these hours will be billed at a rate of 1.5 times the staff's hourly rate (See Sections XV #10). The Election Administrator has the right to waive these costs as they see fit.

The standard dates and hours for the May 7, 2022 election will be as follows:

Monday, April 25, 2022 through Saturday, April 30, 2022; 8am – 5pm Sunday, May 1, 2022; 11am-5pm Monday, May 2, 2022 through Tuesday, May 3, 2022; 7am-7pm.

As Early Voting Clerk, the Elections Administrator shall receive applications for early voting ballots to be voted by mail in accordance with Chapters 31 and 86 of the Texas Election Code. Any requests for early voting ballots to be voted by mail received by the participating authorities shall be forwarded immediately by fax or courier to the Elections Administrator for processing. The address of the Early Voting Clerk is as follows:

Frank Phillips, Early Voting Clerk Denton County Elections PO Box 1720 Denton, TX 76202 Email: elections@dentoncounty.gov

Any requests for early voting ballots to be voted by mail, and the subsequent actual voted ballots that are sent by a contract carrier (ie. UPS, FedEx, etc.) shall be delivered to the Early Voting Clerk at the Denton County Elections Department physical address as follows:

Frank Phillips, Early Voting Clerk Denton County Elections

701 Kimberly Drive, Suite A101 Denton, TX 76208

Email: elections@dentoncounty.gov

The Elections Administrator shall post on the county website, the participating authority's Early Voting Roster on a daily basis. In accordance with Section 87.121 of the Election Code, the daily roster showing the previous day's early voting activity will be posted no later than 11:00 am each business day.

VII. EARLY VOTING BALLOT BOARD

Denton County shall appoint the Presiding Judge of an Early Voting Ballot Board (EVBB) to process early voting results from the Joint Election. The Presiding Judge, with the assistance of the Elections Administrator, shall appoint an Alternate Presiding Judge and one or more additional members to constitute the EVBB. The Elections Administrator shall determine the number of EVBB members required to efficiently process the early voting ballots.

VIII. CENTRAL COUNTING STATION AND ELECTION RETURNS

The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for establishing and operating the central counting station to receive and tabulate the voted ballots in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Election Code and of this agreement.

The participating authorities hereby, in accordance with Section 127.002, 127.003, and 127.005 of the Texas Election Code, appoint the following central counting station officials:

Counting Station Manager: Brandy Grimes, Deputy Elections Administrator

Tabulation Supervisor: Jason Slonaker, Technology Resources Coordinator

Presiding Judge: Early Voting Ballot Board Judge

Alternate Judge: Early Voting Ballot Board Alternate Judge

The counting station manager or their representative shall deliver timely cumulative reports of the election results as precincts report to the central counting station and are tabulated by posting on the Election Administrator's Election Night Results website. The manager shall be responsible for releasing unofficial cumulative totals and precinct returns from the election to the joint participants, candidates, press, and general public by distribution of hard copies at the central counting station (if requested) and by posting to the Election Administrator's Election Night Results website. To ensure the accuracy of reported election returns, results printed on the reports produced by Denton County's voting equipment will not be released to the participating authorities at the remote collection locations or from individual polling locations.

The Elections Administrator will prepare the unofficial canvass reports after all precincts have been counted, and will deliver a copy of the unofficial canvass to each participating authority as soon as possible after all returns have been tabulated. The Elections Administrator will include the tabulation

and precinct-by-precinct results that are required by Texas Election Code Section 67.004 for the participating authorities to conduct their respective canvasses. Each participating authority shall be responsible for the official canvass of its respective election(s), and shall notify the Elections Administrator, or their designee, of the date of the canvass, no later than three days after Election Day.

The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for conducting the post-election manual recount required by Section 127.201 of the Texas Election Code unless a waiver is granted by the Secretary of State. Notification and copies of the recount, if waiver is denied, will be provided to each participating authority and the Secretary of State's Office.

IX. PARTICIPATING AUTHORITIES WITH TERRITORY OUTSIDE DENTON COUNTY

Each participating authority with territory containing population outside of Denton County agrees that they Elections Administrator shall administer only the Denton County portion of those elections.

X. RUNOFF ELECTIONS

Each participating authority shall have the option of extending the terms of this agreement through its runoff election, if applicable. In the event of such runoff election, the terms of this agreement shall automatically extend unless the participating authority notifies the Elections Administrator in writing within three (3) business days of the original election.

Each participating authority shall reserve the right to reduce the number of early voting locations and/or Election Day voting locations in a runoff election.

Each participating authority eligible to hold runoff elections agrees that the date of the runoff election, if necessary, shall be Saturday, June 18, 2022, with early voting being held in accordance with the Election Code.

XI. ELECTION EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF COSTS

The participating authorities agree to share the costs of administering the Joint Election.

Allocation of general expenses, which are not directly attributable to an individual polling location, will be expensed by each participating authority's percentage of registered voters of the total registered voters of all participating authorities.

Expenses for Early Voting by personal appearance shall be allocated based upon the actual costs associated with each early voting location. Each participating authority shall be responsible for an equal portion of the actual costs associated with the early voting locations within their jurisdiction. Participating authorities that do not have a polling location within their jurisdiction shall pay an equal portion of the nearest polling location.

Election Day location expenses will be allocated based on each participating authority's percentage of registered voters assigned to each polling place. If a participating authority's election is conducted at more than one Election Day polling location there shall be no charges or fees allocated to the participating authority for the cost of the Election Day polling location in which the authority has fewer than 50% of the total registered voters served by that polling location, except that if the number of registered voters in <u>all</u> of the authority's polling locations is less than the 50% threshold, the participating authority shall share the expenses, based on their percentage of registered voters, of the polling location at which it has the greatest number of registered voters.

In the event that participating authorities with overlapping boundaries cannot make an agreement on Early Voting and/or Election Day locations, the requesting participating authority agrees to bear the entire expense of the location.

Each participating authority requesting additional hours, outside of the standard hours, for a location or locations, agree to split the cost of the additional open hours equally amongst the requesting participating authorities.

Costs for Early Voting by mail, in-person ballots, provisional ballots, and Poll Pad paper shall be allocated according to the actual number of ballots issued to each participating authority's voters and the cost shared equally amongst participating authorities of each ballot style.

Each participating authority agrees to pay the Elections Administrator an administrative fee equal to ten percent (10%) of its total billable costs in accordance with Section 31.100(d) of the Texas Election Code.

The Denton County Elections Administrator shall deposit all funds payable under this contract into the appropriate fund(s) within the county treasury in accordance with Election Code Section 31.100.

The Denton County Elections Administrator reserves the right to adjust the above formulas in agreement with an individual jurisdiction if the above formula results in a cost allocation that is inequitable.

If any participating authority makes a special request for extra Temporary Branch Early Voting by Personal Appearance locations as provided by the Texas Election Code, that entity agrees to pay the entire cost for that request.

Participating authorities having the majority of their voters in another county, and fewer than 500 registered voters in Denton County, and that do not have an Election Day polling place or early voting location within their Denton County territory shall pay a flat fee of \$400 for election expenses.

Election expenses, including but not limited to, overtime charges for Election Office staff, and any unforeseen expenses needed to conduct the election, will be borne by the participating authority or authorities, affected.

XII. WITHDRAWAL FROM CONTRACT DUE TO CANCELLATION OF ELECTION

Any participating authority may withdraw from this agreement and the Joint Election should it cancel its election in accordance with Sections 2.051 - 2.053 of the Texas Election Code. The withdrawing authority is fully liable for any expenses incurred by the Denton County Elections Administrator on behalf of the authority plus an administrative fee of ten percent (10%) of such expenses. Any monies deposited with the Elections Administrator by the withdrawing authority shall be refunded, minus the aforementioned expenses and administrative fees, if applicable.

It is agreed that any of the joint election early voting locations that are not within the boundaries of one or more of the remaining participating authorities, with the exception of the early voting location at the Denton County Elections Building, may be dropped from the joint election unless one or more of the remaining participating authorities agreed to fully fund such location(s). In the event that any early voting location is eliminated under this section, as addendum to the contract shall be provided to the remaining participants within five days after notification of all intents to withdraw have been received by the Elections Administrator.

XIII. RECORDS OF THE ELECTION

The Elections Administrator is hereby appointed general custodian of the voted ballots and all records of the Joint Election as authorized by Section 271.010 of the Texas Election Code.

Access to the election records shall be available to each participating authority as well as to the public in accordance with applicable provisions of the Texas Election Code and the Texas Public Information Act. The election records shall be stored at the offices of the Elections Administrator or at an alternate facility used for storage of county records. The Elections Administrator shall ensure that the records are maintained in an orderly manner so that the records are clearly identifiable and retrievable.

Records of the election shall be retained and disposed of in accordance with the provisions of Section 66.058 of the Texas Election Code. If records of the election are involved in any pending election contest, investigation, litigation, or open records request, the Elections Administrator shall maintain the records until final resolution or until final judgment, whichever is applicable. It is the responsibility of each participating authority to bring to the attention of the Elections Administrator any notice of pending election contest, investigation, litigation or open records request which may be filed with the appropriate participating authority.

XIV. RECOUNTS

A recount may be obtained as provided by Title 13 of the Texas Election Code. By signing this document, the presiding officer of the contracting participating authorities agree that any recount shall take place at the office of the Elections Administrator, and that the Elections Administrator shall serve as Recount Supervisor, and the participating authority's official or employee who performs the

duties of a secretary under the Texas Election Code shall serve as Recount Coordinator.

The Elections Administrator agrees to provide advisory services to each participating authority as necessary to conduct a proper recount.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 1. It is understood that to the extent space is available, other districts and political subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the County's election equipment and voting places, and it is agreed that the Elections Administrator may contract with such other districts or political subdivisions for such purposes and that in such event there may be an adjustment of the prorata share to be paid to the County by the participating authorities.
- 2. The Elections Administrator shall file copies of this document with the Denton County Treasurer and the Denton County Auditor in accordance with Section 31.099 of the Texas Election Code.
- 3. Nothing in this contract prevents any party from taking appropriate legal action against any other party and/or other election personnel for a breach of this contract or a violation of the Texas Election Code.
- 4. This agreement shall be construed under and in accord with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Denton County, Texas.
- 5. In the event that one of more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.
- 6. All parties shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the State of Texas, all local governments, and any other entities with local jurisdiction.
- 7. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this agreement shall not operate as or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach.
- 8. Any amendments of this agreement shall be of no effect unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto.
- 9. Failure for a participating authority to meet the deadlines as outline in this contract may result in additional charges, including but not limited to, overtime charges, etc.

Elections Staffing Hourly Rate (includes all benefit pay):

Absentee Voting Coordinator	\$46.135
Voter Registration Clerk	\$33.760 - \$51.822
Technology Resources Coordinator	\$59.547
Elections Technician	\$42.000 - \$45.530
Voter Registration Coordinator	\$44.431
Training Coordinator	\$55.650
Election Coordinator	\$38.056

XIV. COST ESTIMATES AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS

The total estimated obligation for each participating authority under the terms of this agreement is listed below. The exact amount of each participating authority's obligation under the terms of this agreement shall be calculated after the May 7, 2022 election (or runoff election, if applicable). The participating authority's obligation shall be paid to Denton County within 30 days after the receipt of the final invoice from the Denton County Elections Administrator.

The total estimated obligation for each participating authority under the terms of this agreement shall be provided within 45 days after the last deadline for ordering an election:

Political Subdivision	Estimated Cost
Argyle	\$5,774.64
Argyle ISD	\$24,627.58
Aubrey ISD	\$9,203.40
Bartonville	\$4,251.76
Belmont FWSD 1	\$4,660.10
Belmont FWSD 2	\$400.00
Carrollton	\$13,931.76
Carrollton-Farmers Branch ISD	\$14,961.07
Celina	\$3,177.63
Celina ISD	\$400.00
Copper Canyon	\$5,095.04
Corinth	\$6,285.74
Cross Roads	\$4,755.20
Denton	\$49,474.67
Denton County	\$301,028.92
Denton County FWSD 10	\$3,958.85
Denton County FWSD 6	\$3,933.96
Denton County FWSD 7	\$3,691.88
Denton ISD	\$73,929.36

Page 12 of 14

Political Subdivision	Estimated Cost
Double Oak	\$5,199.88
Era ISD	\$400.00
Flower Mound	\$15,235.87
Fort Worth	\$6,593.43
Frisco ISD	\$26,053.99
Frisco West WCID	\$4,911.61
Highland Village	\$6,799.66
Justin	\$5,602.61
Krum	\$5,575.94
Krum ISD	\$6,630.62
Lake Cities MUA	\$7,851.25
Lake Dallas ISD	\$7,021.68
Lewisville	\$15,875.64
Lewisville ISD	\$58,714.30
Little Elm	\$13,037.28
Little Elm ISD	\$21,793.64
New Fairview	\$400.00
Northlake	\$4,425.97
Northwest ISD	\$25,280.81
Oak Point	\$5,405.17
Pilot Point	\$8,314.08
Ponder	\$5,149.34
Ponder ISD	\$6,654.82
Prosper	\$3,965.86
Prosper ISD	\$4,795.47
Roanoke	\$5,807.86
Sanger	\$5,709.03
Sanger ISD	\$6,877.32
Shady Shores	\$4,768.57
Trophy Club	\$5,264.39
Trophy Club MUD 1	\$4,656.69
Westlake	\$400.00

XVII. JOINT CONTRACT ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this agreement has been executed on behalf of the parties hereto as follows, to-wit:

- (1) It has on the 10th day of February, 2022 been executed by the Denton County Elections Administrator pursuant to the Texas Election Code so authorizing;
- (2) It has on the __7___ day of _March__, 2022 been executed on behalf of the Town of Double Oak pursuant to an action of the Town of Double Oak so authorizing;

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY DENTON COUNTY ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATOR:

APPROVED:

Frank Phillips, CERA

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY THE TOWN OF DOUBLE OAK:

APPROVED:

ATTESTED:

OR TOWN SECRET



Denco Area 9-1-1 District

1075 Princeton Street 💌 Lewisville, TX 75067

Phone: 972-221-0911 • Fax: 972-420-0709 • DENCO.ORG

TO: Denco Area 9-1-1 District Participating Municipal Jurisdictions

FROM: Gregory S. Ballentine, Executive Director

DATE: March 31, 2022

RE: Nomination for the Denco Area 9-1-1 District Board of Managers

Chapter 772, Texas Health and Safety Code, provides for the Denco Area 9-1-1 District Board of Managers to have "two members appointed jointly by all the participating municipalities located in whole or part of the district." The enclosed resolution describes the appointment process of a municipal representative.

Each year on September 30th, the term of one of the two members appointed by participating municipalities expires. This year it is the term of Jim Carter. Members are eligible for consecutive terms and Mr. Carter has expressed his desire to serve another term.

Denco requests the following actions by the governing bodies of each of the 32 municipalities in the district:

- 1. Immediate Action (Nominate): If your city/town would like to nominate a candidate to represent the municipalities on the Denco Board of Managers, please send a letter of nomination, by way of council action, and résumé of the candidate to the Denco Area 9-1-1 District office. Nominees are historically current or former elected officials in the district; however, there are no official prerequisites. For a nomination to be considered, written notification of council action must reach the Denco Area 9-1-1 District by 5:00 p.m. May 31, 2022. No nominations shall be considered after that time.
- 2. Future Action (Vote): On June 1, 2022, Denco staff will send the slate of nominees to each city/town for consideration, requesting the city/town council vote by resolution for one of the nominees. Written notice of the council's selection must reach the Denco Area 9-1-1 District by 5:00 p.m. on July 30, 2022. No votes will be accepted after that time. However, if a nominating municipality does not thereafter formally vote, its nomination will automatically count as a vote for its nominee.
- Process Closure (Results): The candidate with the most votes will be the municipalities' representative to the Denco Area 9-1-1 District Board of Managers for the two-year term beginning October 1, 2022.

Please send a copy of your council's official action and candidate résumé to the Denco Area 9-1-1 District, 1075 Princeton Street, Lewisville, TX 75067 or to Melinda Camp at melinda.camp@denco.org. Denco staff will acknowledge receipt and sufficiency of the submitted documents. If that acknowledgement is not received within one (1) business day, or you have any other questions, please contact Ms. Camp at 972-221-0911. As a courtesy, Denco will provide notification of your council's action to the nominee.

Thank you for your support of the Denco Area 9-1-1 District.

Enclosure